Case No.

 \mathbf{C}

A

S

 \mathbf{E}

N

0.

S

In the Supreme Court of the State of California

YANTING ZHANG, *Petitioner*,

SUPREME COURT

3F1 - 4 2009

vs.

The Superior Court of San Bernardino County, Respondent,

Frederick K. Ohlnen Clerk

California Capital Insurance Company, Real Party in Interest.

Deputy

After a Decision by the Court of Appeal, Fourth Appellate District, Division Two. Case No. E047207

PETITION FOR REVIEW

Lance D. Orloff (SBN 116070)
AARON J. MORTENSEN (SBN 247184)
GRANT, GENOVESE & BARATTA LLP
2030 Main Street
Suite 1600
Irvine, California 92614
Telephone: (949) 660-1600
Facsimile: (949) 660-6060
Attorneys for Real Party in
Interest, California Capital

ISSUE PRESENTED

In 1988, this Court held that no private right of action exists under the Unfair Insurance Practices Act (Cal. Ins. Code §§ 790 et seq.) (UIPA). *Moradi-Shalal v. Fireman's Fund Ins. Co.* (1988) 46 Cal.3d 287. In 2004, the Fourth District Court of Appeal, Division Three held that a first- or third-party claimant could not plead around *Moradi-Shalal* by asserting an unfair-competition claim under Business and Professions Code sections 17200 et seq. (UCL) for the types of activities governed and prohibited by the UIPA in an insurance claim-handling lawsuit over contractual policy benefits. *Textron Financial Corp. v. Nat'l Union Fire Ins. Co.* (2004) 118 Cal.App.4th 1061, 1070.

In this case, the Fourth District Court of Appeal, Division Two expressly disagrees with *Textron*, and holds otherwise. The Court allows a cause of action for violation of section 17200 for activities proscribed by and intrinsically intertwined with the UIPA. In carving out this exception to *Moradi-Shalal* and its progeny, the Court of Appeal ignores clear distinctions established in prior cases and approved by this Court, and expressly creates a conflict among the Courts of Appeal.

Does California's UCL permit insureds and third-party claimants in claim-handling or amount-of-loss lawsuits to plead around *Moradi-Shalal*, and bring private causes of action for the very types of activities proscribed by and intrinsically intertwined with the UIPA?

INTRODUCTION

A violation of Business and Professions Code section 17200 cannot be predicated upon conduct that is privileged or does not allow for a private right of action. *Manufacturers Life Ins. Co. v. Superior Court* (1995) 10 Cal.4th 257, 283–284. A private cause of action may be stated under Business and Professions Code section 17200 for alleged violations of the Cartwright Act (Business and Professions Code §§ 16700 et seq.), but not "to confer private standing to enforce a provision of the UIPA." *Id.* at 284. Plaintiffs cannot plead around the limitations established in *Moradi-Shalal* "by relying on conduct which violates only the UIPA as the basis for a UC[L] cause of action." *Id.* at 283.

Moradi-Shalal's limitations "should not evaporate because [Zhang] discovers a conveniently different label for pleading what is in substance an identical grievance arising from identical conduct." Rubin v. Green (1993) 4 Cal.4th 1187, 1203. In fact, the UIPA proscribes all of Zhang's alleged grievances, including alleged false or misleading advertising. Zhang, therefore, should not be permitted to label the same grievances as a UCL claim.

The UIPA—which has been deemed a codification of the tort of breach of the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing—expressly prohibits an insurer from committing a myriad of unfair practices. The UIPA also expressly prohibits insurers' untrue, deceptive, fraudulent, or misleading advertising, including as to promised policy benefits. The UIPA's purpose is to regulate insurance-claims-settlement practices and prevent false advertising in the business of insurance.

Moradi-Shalal and its progeny hold that no private rights of action exist for claims arising under the UIPA. Since Moradi-Shalal, the courts of appeal have consistently held in numerous decisions that no party may

recast a private right of action for UIPA violations as a UCL claim. Safeco Ins. Co. v. Superior Court (1990) 216 Cal.App.3d 1491; Maler v. Superior Court (1990) 220 Cal.App.3d 1592; Industrial Indemnity Co. v. Superior Court (1989) 209 Cal.App.3d 1093; Lee v. Travelers Companies (1988) 205 Cal.App.3d 691, 694-695; Doctors' Co. Ins. Services v. Superior Court (1990) 225 Cal.App.3d 1284, 1289; American International Group, Inc. v. Superior Court (1991) 234 Cal.App.3d 749, 768.

A claim-handling dispute is in essence "an action by an insured or third party based on the insurer's alleged failure to comply with a policy or to provide benefits." *Textron*, 118 Cal.App.4th at 1072. Claim-handling and amount-of-loss disputes involve the types of activities that the UIPA governs and proscribes. These activities are so intrinsically intertwined with the UIPA that they cannot be parsed and separated.

Thus, in claim-handling cases, conduct that is "unfair," "fraudulent," or an example of "false advertising" cannot be parsed or separated from the same types of activities governed and proscribed by the UIPA, for which no private right of action exists. The courts retain ample jurisdiction to impose civil damages and other remedies against insurers in civil actions involving claim-handling disputes, and plaintiffs cannot circumvent *Moradi-Shalal* by simply recasting their allegations as UCL violations for conduct proscribed under the UIPA. Otherwise, every claim-handling or amount-of-loss dispute can be repackaged as a potential UCL "false advertising" claim.

Zhang sued California Capital in this first-party claim-handling dispute, alleging causes of action for breach of contract, breach of the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing, and violations of Business and Professions Code § 17200. Zhang alleges that California Capital engaged in improper and fraudulent claims-settlement practices, and that it falsely advertised that it would properly handle and adjust her claim.

Specifically, Zhang alleges that California Capital falsely advertised that it would "timely pay proper coverage" and that, based on the claimshandling conduct alleged in her complaint, "California Capital Insurance Company in fact has no intention of properly paying the true value of its insureds' covered claims [and] [¶] . . . honoring such advertised promises." App. 32, ¶¶ 92–93.

Zhang's allegations are almost verbatim recitations of UIPA's proscriptions. Zhang recasts her allegation that California Capital failed to pay what Zhang believes was the "true value" of her claim into a UCL false-advertising claim by simply alleging that California Capital "falsely advertised" that it would pay covered claims. If permitted, every dispute over the amount of policy benefits owed may be turned into a UCL claim, as every insurer implicitly promises that it will pay covered claims.

Zhang petitioned for writ of mandate. The Court of Appeal, Fourth Appellate District, Division Two issued a peremptory writ of mandate directing the Superior Court of San Bernardino County to vacate its order and to enter a new order overruling the demurrer. The Court expressly disagreed and created a conflict with *Textron*:

[T]he trial court also relied on *Textron Financial Corp. v. National Union Fire Ins. Co.* (2004) 118 Cal.App.4th 1061 (*Textron Financial*). We are compelled to disagree in part with the decision in *Textron Financial* and to hold that *Moradi-Shalal* does not bar the claim under the UCL." Slip Op. at 3.

To justify its conflict with *Textron*, the Court read selectively from the UIPA, citing only 790.03(h)(5) and (9) as examples of insurer conduct properly barred from being repackaged as UCL claims by *Moradi-Shalal* and related cases. The Court then distinguished *Textron* because Zhang alleges "fraudulent misrepresentation" and "misleading advertising" in her UCL claim. But the Court overlooked that the UIPA expressly governs and

proscribes such conduct at Insurance Code sections 790.03(a), (b), and (h)(7).

The Court of Appeal's decision expressly conflicts with *Textron* and creates a conflict among the Courts of Appeal. It also runs contrary to the limitations and exceptions to UCL actions applied by this Court. This Court should, therefore, "secure uniformity of decision [and] settle an important question of law." Cal.R.Ct. 8.500(b)(1).

This Court should resolve the conflict among the Courts of Appeal and hold that a plaintiff in a claim-handling dispute, alleging the types of activities covered by and intrinsically intertwined with the UIPA, may not plead around *Moradi-Shalal's* bar against repackaging UIPA violations as UCL claims.

Ш

WHY REVIEW SHOULD BE GRANTED

In *Textron*, Plaintiff brought a UCL claim in a claim-handling dispute based upon specific allegations of wrongful conduct that are the types of activities covered by the UIPA. Plaintiff alleged the insurer:

- "Engag[ed] in unfair competition' in the 'handling [of plaintiff's] claim, and the claims of other persons."
- "Used misleading documents to falsely suggest that it would provide insurance... where it had no intention to do so."
- "Falsely suggested that it would...provid[e] timely notice of [policy] cancellations."
- "Misrepresented the terms and meaning of its policies...to provide pretext for its refusal to provide timely notice."
- "Engaged in a pattern and practices of wrongful and false cancellations of insurance policies."

Textron, 118 Cal.App.4th at 1069–1070.

The *Textron* court held that "[t]he specific allegations of wrongful conduct contained in plaintiff's fourth cause of action [for violations of Business and Professions Code section 17200], using misleading documents and misrepresenting both the terms of the insurance policies and its obligations under them for its own benefit, are the type of activities covered by the UIPA. (Ins. Code § 790.03 subds. (a) and (h).)" *Id.* at 1070. Thus, the *Textron* court predicated its holding—that the trial court properly sustained without leave to amend the demurrer to plaintiff's cause of action for violations of Business and Professions Code section 17200—on three distinct conclusions:

- "First, the holding in *Safeco Ins. Co. v. Superior Court, supra*, 216 Cal.App.3d 1491, supports the result."
- "Second, this case is distinguishable from *Quelimane* and *Manufacturers Life* in two respects. Neither decision involved an action by an insured nor third party based on the insurer's alleged failure to comply with a policy or to provide benefits. . . . Also, in both cases, the Plaintiff alleged a Cartwright Act violation as the basis for its unfair competition cause of action."
- "Finally, given the Supreme Court's disapproval of State Farm's
 'amorphous' definition of 'unfair' practices and its focus on
 legislatively declared public policy, reliance on general common law
 principals to support a cause of action for unfair competition is
 unavailing."

Id. at 1072.

In this case, Zhang employs a strategy identical to *Textron's* plaintiff. She asserts a UCL cause of action in a claim-handling dispute based upon specific allegations of wrongful conduct that are the very types of activities covered by the UIPA. Zhang's claim for violation of Business and Professions Code section 17200 alleges:

- "The plaintiff/insured Yanting Zhang repeats and realleges paragraphs 1 through 88, inclusive of the Complaint and incorporates the same herein by reference as though set forth in full [including causes of action against California Capital for breach of contract and breach of the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing]."
- "Defendant California Capital Insurance Company engaged in unfair, deceptive, untrue, and/or misleading advertising when it advertised its Businessowners policy products, such as the California Capital policy herein."

"California Capital Insurance Company promises its insureds that it
will timely pay proper coverage in the event the insured suffers a
covered loss. By this promise, California Capital Insurance
Company agrees that if an insured suffers compensable loss, it will
pay the true value of that covered claim. However, as its conduct
herein demonstrates, California Capital Insurance Company in fact
has no intention of properly paying the true value of its insureds'
covered claims."

App. 31–32.

Instead of labeling California Capital's conduct as "unfair competition"—like the *Textron* plaintiff—Zhang's UCL claim labels its conduct as "fraud" and "false advertising." But despite differing labels, both the *Textron* plaintiff and Zhang alleged that their insurers fraudulently misrepresented insurance-policy benefits in handling their property claims. *Textron*, 118 Cal.App.4th at 1070. And just like the *Textron* plaintiff, Zhang alleges that California Capital's conduct is outside and independent of the UIPA, despite the fact that Zhang alleges conduct practically verbatim to the UIPA's proscriptions. App. 32, ¶ 92.

California Capital's alleged activities, which Zhang labels as "fraud" and "false advertising," are, in fact, expressly proscribed by the UIPA, and so intrinsically intertwined with the UIPA that the activities cannot be separated. Under *Moradi-Shalal*, therefore, California Capital's alleged conduct cannot support a private UIPA or UCL right of action. This is true even when Zhang recasts California Capital's alleged UIPA violations as UCL violations.

So in a claim-handling suit brought by a plaintiff-insured—like Zhang—addressing advertising and claims-settlement practices that the UIPA proscribes, a private UCL right of action should not be available. But the Court of Appeal's decision here permits all insureds with claim-

handling and amount-of-loss disputes to assert private UCL rights of action to address UIPA violations:

Such a case does not represent an attempt to subvert or work around the Supreme Court's [Moradi-Shalal] holding; although the Unfair Insurance Practices Act does not provide a private cause of action, in the UCL the Legislature clearly has provided such a remedy for conduct which falls within its purview. Slip Op. at 11.

The Court of Appeal's decision in this case, therefore, directly conflicts with *Textron*, and by extension with *Manufacturers Life*. This Court should resolve the conflict among these Courts of Appeal, approve *Textron*, and bar parties from using California's unfair-competition laws to circumvent *Moradi-Shalal*.

IV

FACTUAL STATEMENT

On or about February 3, 2005, California Capital issued an insurance policy to Zhang. The Policy provides coverage for physical damage to covered building property located at 17502-18 Sequoia Avenue, Hesperia, California, subject to the applicable terms and conditions. Return, ¶ 6; App. 35–107. On July 5, 2005, the Property was damaged by fire. Zhang submitted a claim for the fire loss to California Capital. Return, ¶ 16(a).

Beginning on July 5, 2005, California Capital thoroughly investigated the loss and adjusted the claim, including but not limited to conducting a fire investigation to determine the cause of the fire, obtaining architectural and engineering drawings, preparing a repair estimate, locating two contractors immediately prepared to commence and complete the work with a three to four month timeline. California Capital communicated with Zhang through the entire adjustment of the claim over the phone and in writing. Return, ¶ 16(a).

On or about September 21, 2005, California Capital issued payments to Zhang for \$8,586.00 representing an estimated amount for her business-income loss (estimated because despite numerous requests, Zhang had still not provided documentation of her business-income loss) and \$64,066.47 for actual cash value of building repairs (based on repair estimate of \$101,063.80 less replacement-cost-value holdback and deductible). Return, ¶ 16(b).

California Capital revised its estimate on February 7, 2006 to \$111,277.75, primarily due to vandalism damage that had occurred largely due to Zhang's failure to properly secure the loss site in compliance with the Policy. On February 14, 2006, California Capital issued another payment to Zhang for \$8,264.07 representing revised Actual Cash Value based on the

February 7, 2006 estimate, which had been agreed to by two competent and reputable area repair contractors. Return, ¶ 16(c).

Despite having received payment for her loss at actual cash value, Zhang failed to commence repairs with reasonable speed. In early June 2006, Zhang informed California Capital that she had signed a contract with "Chow Construction" to complete repairs at the Property, and submitted an estimate from that firm for \$384,474.10, an amount far in excess of California Capital's agreed-price repair estimate. Return, ¶ 16(d).

Upon review, the Chow Construction estimate submitted by Zhang was found to be demonstrably inflated. Likewise, Zhang never produced any signed contract for the repairs reflected in the estimate she provided, nor did Chow Construction actually complete any of the repairs reflected in the estimate. California Capital declined payment of the claim based on the Chow Construction estimate, and took exception to a defective and inflated sworn Proof of Loss Zhang submitted that was apparently based on the same inflated estimate. Return, ¶ 16(d).

In early April 2007, nearly one year after sending the Chow Construction estimate and 21 months after the fire; Zhang forwarded another estimate from a different contractor identified as "A & A Top's General Construction" totaling \$185,161.31. Work on the property finally commenced afterward. Return, ¶ 16(e).

On January 31, 2008, Zhang's mortgage holder e-mailed to California Capital documentation verifying that repairs to Zhang's property had finally been completed. Within days, on February 6, 2008, California Capital paid \$36,447.21 for the balance of the covered portion of Zhang's replacement-cost claim. Return, ¶ 16(f).

Additional amounts for engineering services, board-up costs, etc. were paid directly to various vendors, bringing the total loss payments to \$131,853.91. California Capital paid the covered amount of Zhang's loss

and claim in full. Throughout the claim process, California Capital wrote numerous detailed letters to Zhang disclosing and explaining the terms, provisions, and conditions of her policy, the basis for its adjustment of her claims, and the discrepancies found in her claim submissions. Return, \P 16(g).

Throughout the adjustment of this claim, Zhang failed to comply with the conditions of the Policy. She failed to secure the Property from further damage, resulting in further damage. She failed to provide documentation of her business-income-loss claim. She filed an incomplete and inflated sworn Proof of Loss, and did not file her Proof of Loss within the time period specified in the policy. She failed to take necessary steps to resume her business operations as quickly as possible. She failed to timely commence repairs to her property. Return, ¶ 16(h).

Zhang filed the instant lawsuit on July 5, 2007. Zhang's initial complaint and first amended complaint did not contain a cause of action for violations of Business and Professions Code section 17200. Return, ¶ 16(i).

On or about July 21, 2008, Zhang filed her second-amended complaint. Zhang asserted causes of action for breach of contract, breach of the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing and violations of Business and Professions Code section 17200. App. 1–148.

California Capital demurred to Zhang's third cause of action, alleging violations of Business and Professions Code section 17200. The trial court sustained California Capital's demurrer without leave to amend. App. 187–218.

Zhang petitioned for a writ of mandate. In a published decision, the Court of Appeal of the Fourth Appellate District, Division Two issued a peremptory writ of mandate directing the Superior Court to vacate its order and to enter a new order overruling the demurrer. The Court of Appeal

expressly disagreed with *Textron*, creating a conflict among the courts of appeal:

Defendant demurred to this [UCL] cause of action on the basis that the conduct alleged . . . was prohibited by Insurance Code section 790.03, and plaintiff could not state a private cause of action due to decision in *Moradi-Shalal* In accepting this position, the trial court also relied on *Textron Financial* We are compelled to disagree in part with the decision in *Textron Financial* and to hold that *Moradi-Shalal* does not bar the claim under the UCL. Slip Op. at 3 (citations omitted).

REVIEW IS NECESSARY TO RESOLVE A CONFLICT AMONG THE COURTS OF APPEAL, AND DETERMINE THAT A PLAINTIFF IN A CLAIM-HANDLING DISPUTE MAY NOT UTILIZE SECTION 17200 TO CIRCUMVENT MORADI-SHALAL AND ASSERT PRIVATE UIPA CLAIMS

A. A Violation of Business and Professions Code Section 17200 Cannot be Predicated Upon Conduct Which is Privileged or Does Not Allow for a Private Right of Action

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