Case No. S178542



IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

SURREME COURT FILED

YANTING ZHANG,

JAN 8 8 2010

Frederick K. Ohlrich Clerk

Petitioner,

DEPUTY

vs.

SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA FOR THE COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO,

Respondent.

CALIFORNIA CAPITAL INSURANCE COMPANY,

Real Party in Interest.

After A Decision By The Court Of Appeal Fourth Appellate District, Division Two [Case No. E047201]

ANSWER TO PETITION FOR REVIEW

Gary K. Kwasniewski (Bar No. 126808)

gkk@vklawyers.com

Jeanette L. Viau (Bar No. 123224)

jlv@vklawyers.com

VIAU & KWASNIEWSKI

One Bunker Hill

601 West Fifth Street, Eighth Floor

Los Angeles, CA 90071-2004

Telephone: (213) 225-5855

ISSUE PRESENTED

The Fourth District Court of Appeal, Division Two, concluded that where a plaintiff/insured alleges conduct specifically prohibited by the UCL1 - such as "unfair, deceptive, untrue, and/or misleading advertising" there is no reason why an insurance company should have special immunity from UCL liability not possessed by any other industry. Petitioner/insured Yanting Zhang expressly alleged that defendant/Real Party California Capital Insurance Company made "unfair" and "fraudulent" promises in its advertising likely to deceive the public.² The Court concluded that "Inlo reason appears why an insurance company should not be subject to similar liability under the UCL if false advertising or similar misrepresentations can be proved." (Slip Op. at 9.) The Court held that Moradi-Shalal, which prohibits a private right of action based on acts violating Insurance Code sections 790.03(h), et seq. (Unfair Insurance Practices Act, "UIPA") does not apply to exempt carriers from equitable responsibility for violating the UCL. The Court noted, however, that *Moradi-Shalal* will preclude

Unfair Competition Law at Business and Professions Code sections 17200, et seq.

Zhang's Second Amended Complaint, p. 32, par. 92, ll. 1-3.

Moradi-Shalal v. Fireman's Fund Ins. Cos. (1988) 46 Cal.3d 287.

insurance company UCL liability to the extent "a plaintiff relies on conduct that violates the Unfair Insurance Practices Act but is *not otherwise* prohibited. . . ." (Slip Op. at 8; emphasis in original.)

The issue is whether insurance companies should be protected from UCL liability when the allegations against the insurance company are *not* dependent upon the UIPA. Further, pursuant to Insurance Code section 1861.03(a), Petitioner respectfully submits that direct statutory edict provides for such UCL liability.

The Fourth District Court of Appeal, Division Two, properly resolved the issue presented herein. To the extent there is a conflict created by the *Textron Financial Corp. v. National Union Fire Ins. Co.* (2994) 118 Cal.App.4th 1061 decision, then Petitioner/insured Yanting Zhang is not in disagreement with the conclusion that the issue should be resolved by the instant Review Petition, and by upholding the *Zhang* decision.

II.

INTRODUCTION

Real Party California Capital demurred to the third cause of action in Petitioner's Second Amended Complaint, for alleged violations of Business and Professions Code sections 17200, *et seq*. The trial court sustained California Capital's demurrer to the third cause of action, without leave to

amend. The Petitioner submits that the sustaining of California Capital's demurrer was erroneous, and, therefore, Petitioner/insured filed her Petition for Writ of Mandate.

The Court of Appeal granted Petitioner's Writ, and reversed the trial court's sustaining of California Capital's demurrer without leave to amend.

Because Petitioner's Second Amended Complaint alleged conduct to support the UCL cause of action - separate and apart from the conduct constituting violations of the UIPA - the Fourth District concluded that the UCL claims were valid. The Fourth District Court emphasized that insurance companies do not have a unique immunity from UCL liability:

"The UCL, which on its face applies to all 'businesses' and certainly does not expressly except or exempt insurers, does authorize any injured person to sue for the violation of its requirements and/or prohibitions - that is, for 'unfair competition.' (Bus. & Prof. Code, § 17204.) 'Unfair competition' is defined in section 17200 to 'include any unlawful, unfair or fraudulent business act or practice and unfair, deceptive, untrue, or misleading advertising. . . .' Undoubtedly an insurer is subject to suit under the UCL, and numerous cases so reflect. (See, e.g., Quelimane Co. v. Stewart Title Guaranty Co., supra, 19 Cal.4th 26; Ticconi v. Blue Shield of California Life & Health Ins. Co. (2008) 160 Cal.App.4th 528.)" (Slip. Op. at 5.)

Real Party argued that *Moradi-Shalal* prohibited Petitioner's UCL theory, despite the fact that conduct *other* than acts violating the UIPA were

alleged to support that theory. The Fourth District Court rejected such a sweeping application of *Moradi-Shalal's* proscriptions, stating:

"But if a plaintiff expressly alleges conduct expressly prohibited by the UCL, such as fraudulent conduct likely to deceive the public (McKell v. Washington Mutual, Inc., supra, 142 Cal.App.4th 1457) or false advertising, there is simply no reason to apply *Moradi-Shalal* to prohibit the cause of action. Such a case does not represent an attempt to subvert or work around the Supreme Court's holding; although the Unfair Insurance Practices Act does not provide a private cause of action, in the UCL the Legislature clearly has provided such a remedy for conduct which falls within its purview. Again we stress that to construe the Unfair Insurance Practices Act as immunizing insurers from the consequences of misconduct that other business must suffer would simply make no sense. Moradi-Shalal does not require such a result and the decision in Manufacturers' Life in fact supports this conclusion." (Slip. Op. at 10 - 11.)

Finally, the Court acknowledged that "a somewhat closer question would be presented" if the pleading's UCL cause of action were predicated solely on UIPA violations. In *Moradi-Shalal*, the Supreme Court decided that there is no private right of action for civil damages pursuant to the UIPA based on claims mishandling. That case does *not*, however, immunize insurance companies from the consequences (including equitable) of all *other* unlawful, unfair, or fraudulent business acts or

practices, or of unfair, deceptive, untrue, or misleading advertising. To immunize insurance companies from the consequences of misconduct for which other businesses must answer "makes no sense."

Finally, the Fourth District Court agreed with the "approach" in *Progressive West Ins. Co. v. Superior Court* (2005) 135 Cal.App.4th 263, where the Third District Court of Appeal affirmed the overruling of a demurrer as to a UCL claim. The Court in *Progressive West* concluded that the insured's third cause of action was valid based on the factual allegations as to Progressive's violations of the UCL by its deceptive and misleading statements concerning its insurance products. The Court concluded that the carrier's "conduct is likely to deceive the public. . . ." As such, "we conclude that Preciado has stated a [UCL] cause of action and the demurrer was properly overruled." *See, Progressive West, supra,* 135 Cal.App.4th at 284 - 285.

The Fourth District Court in *Zhang* concluded that "to the extent" that *Textron Financial Corp. v. National Union Fire Ins. Co.* (2004) 118 Cal.App.4th 1061 "is inconsistent, we disagree." (Slip. Op. 10.)

The notion that insurance companies do not enjoy impunity for unlawful, unfair, or fraudulent business practices - separate and apart from UIPA misconduct - patently is not new. See, e.g., Donabedian v. Mercury

Ins. Co. (2004) 116 Cal.App.4th 968, 984; Gallimore v. State Farm Fire & Cas. Ins. Co. (2002) 102 Cal.App.4th 1388, 1392; Kapsimallis v. Allstate

Ins. Co. (2002) 104 Cal.App.4th 667, 676 - 677. As such, Petitioner respectfully submits that the Fourth District Court's decision in Zhang was sound, and that there is no basis for Supreme Court review. However, if the Court finds that there is a conflict among the Courts of Appeal, Petitioner submits that review is proper, and that the Zhang decision should be upheld.

III.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

Petitioner Yanting Zhang previously owned the insured property at issue, located at 17518 Sequoia Avenue, Hesperia, California, 92345 ("Property"). Petitioner purchased the California Capital Policy in the event of damage and loss at the Property. On July 5, 2005, a fire erupted; the fire, and the water used to extinguish the fire, caused widespread damage.

Subsequent to Petitioner's timely notice to California Capital, the carrier proceeded to engage in a campaign of harassing conduct. As Petitioner alleges in the operative pleading, California Capital's conduct took on a personally malevolent tenor, such that its behavior and actions went far beyond mere "claims handling."

To summarize the dispute between the parties:

- On January 4, 2006, California Capital concluded that the cost to repair the extensive real property damage totaled
 \$111,277.75.
- Over the next year and a half, Petitioner obtained repair scopes and bids which were well in excess of California
 Capital's estimate of \$111,277.75, and presented the scopes and bids to California Capital. California Capital refused to reconsider its position.
- Petitioner had no choice but to pay for the Property repairs
 herself, given that California Capital's estimate and offer
 were far less than what was needed to repair the Property.
- Representing herself, Petitioner finally was forced to file a
 lawsuit on July 5, 2007 against California Capital. Petitioner
 subsequently retained her current counsel of record. When
 Petitioner's counsel sought to engage in litigation, California
 Capital invoked Appraisal.
- Each party retained a disinterested, qualified Appraiser. The
 Appraisers selected a neutral Umpire. The Appraisal Award
 was issued on May 21, 2009. The Award based on November
 2005 prices (California Capital's date) totaled \$185,261.47.

The Award based on March 2007 prices (Petitioner's date) totaled \$194,491.41. Both Awards are in stark contrast to the \$111,277.75 California Capital demanded that Petitioner accept.

The cost of just the Appraisal itself exceeded \$30,000, for Petitioner Zhang alone.

The delays and costs now have resulted in Petitioner Zhang losing the Property through foreclosure. The Property that was and is the subject of these proceedings no longer belongs to Petitioner Yanting Zhang.

In addition to its undervaluation of Petitioner's property loss, the carrier's conduct included:

- Forwarding harassing and dunning notices advising Petitioner
 that if she did not repair the Property, the carrier would cancel
 her insurance. However, it was because of California
 Capital's own unreasonable undervaluation, conduct, and
 delays that Petitioner could not properly repair the Property.
 California Capital then cancelled Petitioner's Policy.
- Interfering with Petitioner's attempts to retain a Public Adjuster to assist her.

Informing the mortgage holder on the Property that Petitioner had no intention of repairing the property, which was false.

By 2007, Petitioner did have the Property repaired, which was the catalyst for her substantial financial loss. California

Capital's fraudulent representations to the mortgage holder caused the mortgage holder to initiate legal proceedings against the Petitioner - legal proceedings Petitioner had to defend. The stress resulting from the accusations against her caused Petitioner severe pregnancy complications, and the premature birth of her daughter, with its attendant health risks.

Meanwhile, California Capital's advertisements state, inter alia:

"Our goal is to be a valuable asset to you - every step of the way, whether you have a claim or not. . . We are second to none in our dedication to your safety and security. . . Our solid commitment to stay by your side has attracted the leading insurance advisors. You can rely on our expert network of independent agents to offer you custom coverage that fits your life." See, www.ciginsurance.com/main_body., web page.

California Capital is not immune from liability pursuant to Business and Professions Code statutory provisions specifically designed to prohibit and proscribe such "unlawful, unfair, and fraudulent" conduct. An

insurance carrier should not have an immunity not enjoyed by any other industry for false promises made which were and are likely to deceive the public, and which were not kept.

IV.

LEGAL DISCUSSION

A. Petitioner's UCL Cause Of Action Is Not Predicated On Privileged Conduct

Real Party states that "no alleged UCL violation, even in the consumer-protection context, may be predicated upon conduct that is privileged. . . ." (Petition, p. 14.) As such, Real Party contends, allowing the Business and Professions Code theory essentially undermines the holding of *Moradi-Shalal v. Fireman's Fund Ins. Co.* (1988) 46 Cal.3d 287 - because that case holds there is no private right of action pursuant to Insurance Code section 790.03: "Plaintiffs [sic] cannot plead around *Moradi-Shalal* 'by relying on conduct which violates only the UIPA as the basis for a UC[L] cause of action." (Petition, p. 15, citing to *Manufacturers Life.*) However, *Moradi-Shalal* bars private civil actions for monetary remedies based on claims handling misconduct - the case does *not* proscribe fraudulent advertising claims seeking restitutionary relief.

Further, in *Manufacturers Life Ins. Co. v. Superior Court* (1995) 10 Cal.4th 257, 277, the Court expressly held that the UIPA itself does not

create a "wholesale exemption" from liability for conduct that also constitutes unlawful, unfair, or fraudulent business activities. The Court in *Manufacturers Life* stated:

"Neither the language of the UIPA nor its history suggests that the Legislature intended by its enactment to abolish the Cartwright Act and UC[L] remedies for conduct which the UIPA also proscribes. . . ."

The Court in *Manufacturers Life* rejected the notion that in adopting the UIPA, the Legislature intended that only the Insurance Commissioner be authorized to remedy *other* unlawful conduct by insurance companies. *Manufacturers Life, supra,* 10 Cal.4th at 272 - 273. As the Fourth District Court mentioned more than once, here, insurance companies are not exempt from answering for misconduct engaged in separate and apart from claims handling.

Petitioner specifically alleges that California Capital "engaged in unfair, deceptive, untrue, and/or misleading advertising. . . ." These are acts that were not part of the claims handling in this case. The foundational premise for Petitioner's UCL claim is not "privileged."

B. Conduct That Does Not Allow A Private Right Of Action Will Support A UCL Theory

Furthermore, Petitioner's pleading alleges that California Capital violated numerous Regulations, set forth at the California Regulations, Title

10, Chapter 5, subchapter 7.5, sections 2695.1, et seq. As the Court stated in Stevens v. Superior Court (1999) 75 Cal.App.4th 594, 606:

"A regulatory statute may form the basis for such a UCA [Business and Professions Code section 17200] action. The Supreme Court has long held that the 'unlawful' practices which form the basis of a UCA action are '... any practices forbidden by law, be it civil or criminal, federal state, or municipal, statutory, regulatory, or court-made...'

It is not necessary that the predicate law provide for private civil enforcement."
(Emphases in original.)

See, Stevens v. Superior Court, supra, 75 Cal.App.4th at 606, 89 Cal.Rptr.2d at 378, quoting to Saunders v. Superior Court (1994) 27 Cal.App.4th 832, 838 - 839.

The Court in *Troyk v. Farmers Group, Inc.* (2009) 171 Cal.App.4th 1305, 1335 held that even where the offending conduct violates a statute for which there is no direct enforcement, or private right of action, the conduct may properly be the subject of a UCL claim: A private plaintiff individual may bring a 17200 action even when "the conduct alleged to constitute unfair competition violates a statute for the direct enforcement of which there is no private right of action." *Id.*, citing to *Kasky v. Nike, Inc.* (2002) 27 Cal.4th 939, 950 and *Stop Youth Addiction, Inc. v. Lucky Stores, Inc.* (1998) 17 Cal.4th 553, 565.

C. The Conduct Here Is "Otherwise Prohibited"; Real Party's Contention That Petitioner's UCL Claim Is Barred Because It Is Predicated Solely On The UIPA Is Erroneous

Real Party argues that Insurance Code section 790.03 includes in its proscriptions untrue, deceptive, or misleading advertising. *See*, Ins. C. § 790.03(a), (b). Real Party contends that pursuant to the UIPA, unfair, fraudulent, or false advertising "cannot be parsed or separated from conduct covered by the UIPA." (Petition, p. 17.) Thus, according to California Capital, *Moradi-Shalal* proscribes an insurance company's liability for fraudulent or false advertising under the UCL.

Petitioner respectfully submits that such a broad and sweeping view of UIPA proscriptions was *not* intended by the Court in *Moradi-Shalal*.

First, the action in *Moradi-Shalal* pertained to an insurer's alleged refusal to promptly and fairly settle the plaintiff's claim against the carrier's insured. At issue was a third party claim - not a first party claim - predicated solely on alleged claims handling misconduct. The relief sought was civil monetary damages.

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